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326 MINES AND PETROLEUM RESOURCES REPOR

REFERENCE: Minister of Mines, B.C., Ann. Rept., 1968, p. 250.
DEescripTiON: Following a small amount of productive work around No. 5 level,
the operation was closed indefinitely.

WESTMONT  (No. 64, Fig. 41) By P.E. Otso

LocaTioN: Lat. 49° 50.0/ Long. 117° 19.4' (82F/14wW)
On the north side of Enterprise Creek, about 4 miles from the Slocan-New

Denver highway.
Craivs: WESTMONT (Lot 8929) and eight other adjoining Crown-granted -
mineral claims, -
Access: Via mining-roads along the north side of Enterprise Creek.
OwNER: EASTMONT SILVER MINES LTD., 506, 905 West Pender Street, =
Vancouver 1. 1
MeTALs: Silver, lead, zinc (see Table 12 for production). 5
Work DoNE: Some drifting and stoping, mainly on No. 5 level of the Westmont
mine. Hand-sorted ore was shipped to the Trail smelter.
REFERENCE: Minister of Mines, B.C., Ann. Rept., 1968, p. 250.

SILVERTON
GALENA FARM  (No. 62, Fig. 41)

LocaTioN: Lat. 49° 55.8’ Long. 117° 21.5’ (82F/14W)
Two and one-half miles south of Silverton.

Cramms: CURRIE (Lot 744), GROVER (Lot 1330), STEVENSON (Lot 1331),
PEERLESS REVISED (Lot 1332), KATE (Lot 1333).

Access: By road from Silverton.

OpPERATOR: LARCH MINING LTD., Silverton (under lease from Red Deer Val-
ley Coal Company, Limited).

METALS: Silver, lead, zinc.

Work DoNE: Three bulldozer trenches totalling 350 feet long and two diamond-
drill holes totalling 265 feet.

FREDDY (No. 62, Fig. 41) By P. E. Olson
LocaTioN: Lat. 49° 56.1/ Long. 117° 21.2/ (82F/14W)
The Freddy mine is 1 mile south of Silverton, at an elevation of about 2,300

feet.
Cramvs: The FREDDY Crown-granted mineral claim (Lot 4025).
Access: Via mining-road from Silverton, a distance of 2 miles.

OWNER: V. HANSEN, New Denver.
MEeTALs: Silver, lead, zinc (see Table 12 for production).
WoRrk DoNE: Stoping and hand sorting. About 52 tons of ore was shipped to the

Trail smelter.
REFERENCE: Minister of Mines, B.C., Ann. Rept., 1968, p. 251.

HEWITT (No. 61, Fig. 41) By P. E. Olson
LocaTioN: Lat. 49° 56.0 Long. 117° 18.0 (82F/14W)

' The Hewitt mine is on the south side of Silverton Creek, about 3 miles east of
Silverton, at an elevation of about 4,000 feet.
Craims: HEWITT (Lot 4440), LORNA DOONE (Lot 1401) Crown-granted

mineral claims.
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Silver-Lead-Zinc

Galena Farm (49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 634 Sixth Avenue
Red Deer Valley Coal Southwest, Calgary, ‘Alta.; mine office, Silverton. W.
Company, Limited MacLeod, mine manager. The property is 214 miles
By P. E. Olson south of Silverton, and is reached by a road that leaves

the Slocan-New Denver highway at Silverton. The company owns a large group

of claims including the Galena Farm group.

During January and February dump rock from the Galena Farm was trucked
to the company concentrator, which is 1 mile south of Silverton. The mill treated
1,700 tons of this material and shipped 21 tons of lead concentrates and 105 tons
of zinc concentrates to the Trail smelter.

During the summer and autumn the mine area was investigated by means of
a geophysical survey and geochemical analyses. The mine and mill were idle at
the end of the year.

LODE METALS 221

Silver-Lead-Zinc

Monarch (49° 117° N.E.) A. Elsmore and M. Fryters leased on the Mon-

ByP.E.Obon arch, which is on the north side of Silverton Creek about 4 miles east
of Silverton. Underhand stoping on an oreshoot below the Monarch adit produced
about 74 tons of lead ore, which was shipped to the Trail smelter. The two men
worked the property on week-ends from June to October.

Silver-Lead-Zine SANDON

Deadman (49° 117° N.E.) The Deadman lode, part of the Noble Five prop-

ByP.E.OLon  erty at Cody, is held under lease by L. Fried, of New Denver. Fail-
ure of the Carnegie mill to operate in Sandon forced Fried to limit his efforts to
extracting shipping ore rather than milling ore. Fried hand-sorted 5 tons of lead
ore, which he shipped to the Trail smelter.

Silver-Lead-Zinc

Shady (49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 320, 355
Bralorne Pioneer Mines Limited  Burrard Street, Vancouver 1. The Shady
By P. E. Olson and Shady Fractional mineral claims are on

Carpenter Creek about 1 mile east of Cody. The property has been worked exten-
sively as a source of high-grade galena, which is found as float in overburden on
the north side of Carpenter Creek. The company did some trenching and put down
a 300-foot diamond-drill hole on the Shady Fraction with a view of locating the
source of the galena boulders, but did not intersect ore. Work was directed by
J. P. Weeks.

Silver-Lead-Zinc
Slocan Sovereign  (49° 117° N.E.) The Slocan Sovereign Crown-granted min-
By P. E. Olson eral claim is adjacent to the Reco mine about 1 mile northeast

of Cody on the Cody—Reco mine road. P. Leontowicz and A. Maxinuk hold
a lease on the property and did some mining and exploration in the vicinity of
a discovery made during 1965. The property was worked on a part-time basis
during the summer. Two small shipments of crude lead were made to the Trail
smelter.
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194 MINES AND PETROLEUM RESOURCES REPORT;, 1965

pendant in the Nelson Batholith. Pyrite, pyrrhotite, and chalcopyrite mineraliza-
tion was encountered. The Consolidated company has carried out a mapping and
drilling programme over the past two years, mainly on the Rockland and Willa
Crown-granted mineral claims. Diamond drilling in 1965 amounted to 975 feet
in four holes. Work was diretced by A. B. Mawer.

Silver-Lead-Zinc
(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 634 Sixth Avenue South-
Galena Farm west, Calgary, Alta.; mine office, Silverton. L. N. Garland,
(Red Deer Valley mine manager; F. Mills, mine superintendent. The property
Coal Company, is under lease and option to the Red Deer Valley Coal Com-
Limited)* pany, Limited, from Galena Farm Mining and Milling Com-
pany of Spokane, Wash. Rehabilitation work was started on
No. 1 and No. 2 levels during November, and dump rock was being shipped to the
company concentrator at Silverton by late December. The mill treated 90 tons of
dump rock, which graded about 1.0 per cent lead and 3.0 per cent zinc. Explora-
tion on No. 2 level was started, but considerable timbering had to be done before
blasting and mucking could start. The mine and mill employed about 35 men at

the year-end.

ENTERPRISE CREEK
Silver-Lead-Zinc
(49° 117° N.E.) The Enterprise mine consists of fairly
Enterprise* extensive workings on the south side of Enterprise Creek,
about 6 miles by road from the Slocan—-New Denver highway.
The property has been idle since 1952 except for occasional leases. R. T. Avison
and J. Nesbitt, of Silverton, took out a lease from Western Exploration Company
Limited and rehabilitated the area around No. 6 and No. 7 level adits. A new
adit was driven between No. 6 and No. 7 levels, and about 20 tons of ore mined
was shipped directly to the Trail smelter. Just before winter set in, a 35-foot raise
was put in on No. 6 level. This made a section of ore available for stoping. The
Enterprise vein is quite narrow but contains sections of massive ore with high silver
values.

Gold-Silver
(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 23 Glade View Crescent
Jumbo (Timberline Southwest, Calgary, Alta; field office, c/o S. Berisoff,
Mines Limited)*  Silverton. The Jumbo group of 10 recorded mineral claims
is on the south side of Enterprise Creek, 8.3 miles from the
Slocan-New Denver highway. Timberline Mines Limited was formed specifically
to conduct exploration on the Jumbo. An adit was driven at an elevation of 5,000
feet where previous stripping had disclosed high gold values in a sheer which cuts
granite of the Nelson batholith. The adit was driven 100 feet along the shearing
before the project was abandoned. Samples taken at regular intervals along the
drift gave disappointing results. Mr. Berisoff supervised the work, which employed
three men for three months during the early part of the summer. The company
dropped its option on the property late in 1965.

* By P. E. Olson.
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Stoping commenced in August. Heavy timbering and mechanical ventilation
were necessary before stoping could be successfully carried out. The mill operated
continuously after August on a one-shift-per-day basis and treated 3,033 tons of
ore. Production: Silver, 36,908 ounces; lead, 156,969 pounds; zinc, 165,155
pounds.

Twenty-one men were employed during the latter half of 1964.

The company decided to purchase custom ore from small producers in the
Silverton area and installed a crusher to permit sampling of small lots. Milling on
a custom basis amounted to 1,506 tons.

Hecla Mine Lease.—A. Elsmore and M. Fryters leased the Hecla ore zone on
the Mammoth No. 7 level and produced 8 tons of mill-feed and 5 tons of shipping
ore. The mill feed was purchased by Johnsby Mines Limited. Total metal pro-
duction amounted to: Silver, 1,407 ounces; lead, 6,177 pounds; zinc, 3,307
pounds. Fryters and Elsmore operated their lease on week-ends and holidays.

(49° 117° N.E.) This property is under lease to Frank

Hewitt* Pho and Jack Kelly, of Silverton. The mine is on the south

side of Silverton Creek, about 3 miles east of Silverton.

Early in 1964 Kelly and Pho deepened the internal shaft to No. 12 level and de-

veloped the Hewitt oreshoot from No. 12 to No. 11 level. They mined 1,372 tons

of mill-feed from the ore zone and then allowed the workings below No. 10 level

to flood. The ore was treated at the Standard mill at Silverton and the concentrates

were shipped to the Trail smelter. Production: Silver, 35,374 ounces; lead,
105,100 pounds; zinc, 155,878 pounds.

(49° 117° N.E.) The Galena Farm is 2%2 miles south of

Galena Farm* Silverton, and is reached by a road that leaves the Slocan—

New Denver highway at Silverton. The Galena Farm is under

lease to Frank Mills, of Silverton, who worked the mine with the help of Joe Hambly

during 1964. Mining was limited to pillar recovery and stoping adjacent to previ-

ously mined sections on the footwall of the Noonday vein. Production of 126 tons

was treated at the Standard mill at Silverton. Concentrates contained: Silver, 594
ounces; lead, 1,919 pounds; zinc, 26,379 pounds.

(49° 117° N.E.) The Freddy fractional mineral claim is

Freddy* about 3 miles south of Silverton, immediately north of the

Galena Farm mine. V. C. Hansen, the owner, and H. Lyon

worked the property during the summer months and hand-sorted 16 tons of ore

which was shipped to the Trail smelter. An attempt was made to collar a shaft over
the vein, but heavy overburden was encountered and the shaft was abandoned.

ENTERPRISE CREEK

Silver-Gold
(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, Nelson. E. F. Reuther,
Jumbo (Vern  president; J. H. E. Ebert, secretary. This is a private com-
Mines Limited)* pany with a capitalization of 100,000 shares, no par value.
The Jumbo group of 10 recorded mineral claims is on the
south side of Enterprise Creek, 8.3 miles from the Slocan-New Denver highway.
S. Berisoff, of Silverton, the original locator of these claims, sold the property to
Vern Mines Limited early in 1964. A bulldozer was used to strip the vein at four

® By P. E. Olson.
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78 MINES AND PETROLEUM RESOURCES REPORT, 1961

and the raise was driven from No. 10 level to the old Mammoth workings or: No.
9 level. This provides access and ventilation to the area below No. 9 level. The
main stoping area was between No. 10 level and No. 9 level. Development con-
sisted of 270 feet of drifting and 460 feet of raising. The concentrator, operzting
on a one-shift basis, treated 3,401 tons of ore during 1961. The average nu:nber
of men was fourteen, three of whom were employed in the mill.

Hewitt (Kopan Developments Limited).—(49° 117° N.E.) Company

office, 906, 11 Adelaide Street West, Toronto. W. W. Dennis, president. This

property was leased to F. Pho and J. Hichert for two years. The lessees mined on
No. 10 level, and the ore was hauled to the Western Exploration concentrator. The
total ore treated was 282 tons.

° 117° N.E.) F. Mills, of Silverton, holds a lease on
Toad south of Silverton. The ore was hauled to the Western
Exp i concentrator. The total ore treated was 374 tons.

SPRINGER CREEK*

Silver
(49° 117° N.E.) This group of five claims is owned by
Anna (Silver King Silver King Mines Limited; mine office, Silverton. B. Mara-
Mines Limited) sek, president and manager. The property is on the northern
side of Springer Creek, adjoining the Ottawa mine on the
east. It is accessible by 5 miles of good road from Slocan City.

Development continued on No. 4 level: Drift extension, 650 feet; crosscut-
ting, 35 feet; raising, 205 feet. One raise was driven 170 feet on the dip to con-
nect with No. 3 level, but was not completed. An average crew of four men was
employed for six months. No ore was shipped.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 19 North Bernard Street,

Ottawa (Ottawa Spokane, Wash.; mine office, Silverton. T. C. Hughes, presi-

Silver Mines dent; C. Thickett, mine manager. The option on this prop-

Limited) erty to Skylane Mines Limited was bought back by Ottawa

Silver Mines Limited in the spring of 1961. In August the

property was optioned to Silver Buckle Mining Company, of Wallace, Idaho. This
option was dropped in November after geological examination.

The property is on the north side of Springer Creek, 5 miles by road from
Slocan City. All work was done by Ottawa Silver Mines Limited. A small tonnage
of ore mined on No. 8 level was shipped to the Trail smelter. A new drift was
started, called No. 9 level, to be driven along the Ottawa shear to interscct the
downward extension of the vein.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 1600, 100 Adclaide

Arlington Street West, Toronto 1; mine office, Slocan City. A. W.

(Aumaque Gold Johnson, president; R. C. Phillips, manager. Capital:

Mines Limited) 10,000,000 shares, $1 par value. This property cousists of

five Crown-granted and ten recorded claims and is under

option from B. I. Nesbitt, of Vancouver. The property is on the north side of
Springer Creek, 6.7 miles by road from Slocan City.

* By J. D. McDonald.
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No. 9 level was started in the footwall of the lode. A station was cut at 170 feet,
and the raise was 180 feet long when work ceased. Oxygen deficiency prevents
access to the raise unless ventilation is provided.

While operating, twenty-one men were employed underground and seven
were employed widening the road. There was no production. The 250-ton con-
centrator remained idle.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 511, 850 West Hastings

Bosun (New  Street, Vancouver 1. R. Crowe-Swords, president. Capital:

Santiago Mines 3,000,000 shares, 50 cents par value. The Bosun mine is on

Limited) the east shore of Slocan Lake, 172 miles south of New Den-

ver on the Nelson-Nakusp Highway. The main haulage,

No. 6 adit, is driven beneath the highway from a site 40 feet above the lake. W. H.

McLeod, of Silverton, with the aid of two partners, is sinking a winze on the main
vein to a proposed depth of 100 feet.

""" \(49° 117° N.E.) Frank Mills, of Silverton, holds a lease
/Gélena Farm _/on this mine, 2 miles by road south of Silverton. Mining was
; done on a short vein east of the “ Camels Hump * stope on
the Tmainm vein. The ore is by-passed down to the main level and trammed to the
ore-bin at the old mill-site. The ore was trucked to the Western Exploration con-
centrator, where it was stockpiled.
(49° 117° N.E.) This property is owned by J. A. Cullinane,
Westmont (Silver of the Ellis Syndicate of Nelson. It consists of nine Crown-
King Mines granted mineral claims and fractions on the north side of
Limited) Enterprise Creek, opposite the Enterprise mine. Silver King

Mines Limited had an option on this property but dropped it
in the summer of 1959. Approximately 210 tons of ore was shipped.

NORTH LARDEAU*

FERrRGuUsoN (50° 117° N.E.)
Silver-Lead-Zinc

Black Warrior, Elsmere.—This property, owned by J. Main, of Ferguson, is
at the headwaters of Ferguson Creek, 10 miles by trail from Ferguson. Minor
repairs were made on the trail.

HaLL Creex (50° 117° N.E.)
Silver-Lead-Zinc

J. Gallo, of Howser, owns the Bannockburn group of Crown-
Bannockburn  granted mineral claims. The Shelagh group of five adjoining
mineral claims is owned by Sheep Creek Mines Limited. This
property is on the south side of the headwaters of Hall Creek, a tributary of Duncan
River, about 19 miles north of the head of Duncan Lake, on the northeast side of
Mount Abbott. The property is reached by 17 miles of road from a point on the
Lardeau-Gerrard Highway, about 3 miles south of Gerrard, up Healy Creek to the
summit into Hall Creek basin. During the summer a new road, about 3 miles long,

was built from the summit down to Bannockburn Creek.
J. Gallo, of Howser, owns the Wagner group of Crown-
Wagner - granted mineral claims on the north side of the headwaters
of Hall Creek, a tributary of Duncan River. The property

* By J. D. McDonald.
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56 REPORT OF THE MINISTER OF MINES, 1957

The main development was the preparation for a new low-level drive. A new road
2.3 miles long was constructed from the old Hewitt mill-site on the Silverton Creek road
to a portal site on the Tick claim at an elevation of 4,290 feet. It is proposed to drive
2,300 feet northeastward to reach a point 400 feet vertically below the No. 9 level of the
Mammoth mine.

The Standard was idle, except for leasing operations. J. W. Kelly mined about 300
tons, which was milled at the company’s mill.

The Enterprise mine remained closed, but the camp is intact and a watchman is
employed.

The mill operated throughout 1957 treating company ore as well as Violamac ore
on a custom basis. The number of men employed was increased from thirty-five to
seventy in the latter half of 1957.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 511, 850 West Hastings Street,
Bosun (New Vancouver. R. Crowe-Swords, president. Capital: 3,000,000
Santiago Mines shares, 50 cents par value. The Bosun mine is on the east shore
Limited) of Slocan Lake, 1% miles south of New Denver on the Nelson—
Nakusp Highway. The main haulage, No. 6 adit, is driven be-
neath the highway from a site 40 feet above the lake. W. H. McLeod, with the aid of
a partner, has operated a lease intermittently since 1956. Exploration, consisting of
crosscutting and raising, was continued in the south central section of the mine to investi-
gate the findings of diamond drilling done many years ago, but was unsuccessful. Ore
remnants were mined on No. 6 level near the main winze, in the central section above the
main drift, and in the east section near the portal. This ore was milled at the Carnegie
mill at Sandon. Production: Ore milled, 76 tons. Gross content: Gold, 1 oz.; silver,
1,251 oz.; lead, 6,566 lb.; zinc, 12,049 1b.; cadmium, 63 1b.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 532 Burrard Street, Vancouver.
VYan Roi, Hewitt W. Tattrie, mine manager; T. Leask, mill superintendent. Capital:
(Slocan Van Roi 5,000,000 shares, no par value. This company owns the Van Roi
Mines Limited) and Hewitt mines, 6%2 miles by road southeast of Silverton.
Transcontinental Resources Limited has directional control. In the
Hewitt mine an orebody below No. 10 level was developed in 1956 by a winze to No. 11
level. This block of ore, 95 feet long, was leased to J. Heichert for removal. Eight men
were engaged in this work, and the operation was completed in July. Another lease was
given to M. Tarnowski, who mined ore remnants in the same area above No. 10 level.
Another lease on this level was given in the latter part of 1957 to J. Harding and A.
Cooper.

In the Van Roi mine the S.F. and M. Mining Company, which has leased the mine
since 1953, operated on a reduced scale. Some development was done on No. 4 level in
the “ Brookes’ ” stope area. Four men were engaged in this work.

The Van Roi mill is 1 mile south of Silverton on the Nelson—Nakusp Highway. It
operated in 1956 after being shut down since 1952. In 1957 it operated intermittently
until September, handling lessees’ ore from the Hewitt and Van Roi. Custom milling
was also done for the Westmont mine on Enterprise Creek.

: (49° 117° N.E.) This mine is 2 miles by road south of Silverton.
@ For several years it has been operated intermittently on lease by
Frank S. Mills, of Silverton. A mineralized fissure, discovered in

1955 east of the old shaft, was developed in 1956 by a short adit and shallow winze. In
1957 the old Galena Farm main adit was rehabilitated for 500 feet and a raise connec-
tion 100 feet long was made with the winze. A small orebody of milling grade was

exposed in this work. No shipments were made in 1957, and the property was idle in
the latter half of the year.
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98 REPORT OF THE MINISTER OF MINES, 1956

The Van Roi camp, consisting of modern bunk-houses change-house, and cook-
house, was again put into use. It had been partly stripped in 1953. The number of
_on company operations averaged twenty.

4 (49° 117° N.E.) This mine is about 2 miles by road south of
Silverton. For several years it has been leased intermittently by
Frank S. Mills, of Silverton. A mineralized fissure, discovered in
1955 east of the old shaft, was developed by a short adit. A well-mineralized section,

50 feet long, was stoped to near surface. Sorted ore was shipped to the Trail smelter,
and the lower grade was milled at the Van Roi concentrator. Production: Ore shipped,
30 tons. Gross content: Silver, 3,315 oz.; lead, 39,619 Ib.; zinc, 3,166 Ib. Ore milled,

238 tons. Gross content: Silver, 3,085 oz.; lead, 32,259 1b.; zinc, 43,034 Ib.; cad-
" mium, 278 1b.

(49° 117° N.E.) The Noonday mine is just east of the Galena
Noonday Farm mine. It was under lease to K. Millar and H. Lyon, of
Silverton, who made a shipment to the Trail smelter. Produc-
tion: Ore shipped, 5 tons. Gross content: Silver, 25 oz.; lead, 661 Ib.; zinc, 428 1b.
(49° 117° N.E.) The A.U. No. 1 and A.U. No. 2 are recorded
A.U. claims adjoining the Van Roi holdings to the south and cover
(Lucky Thought) ground at one time known as the Lucky Thought. The workings
are reached by a road, 1 mile long, from a point on the Silverton
Creek road 3 miles from Silverton. The property has been idle since 1950, but in 1956
operations resumed under the N.G.N. Partnership of J. Nesbitt, K. Gordon, and W.
Nixon. A mineralized shear in argillite has been developed by four adits. A sublevel
is established off a raise between the No. 4 and No. 3 adits. All previous ore has been
obtained from the sublevel and above No. 3 level. In 1956 work was concentrated in
No. 4 adit, which consists of a southerly crosscut for 650 feet long and 600 feet of
drifting on the shear. No worth-while mineralization has been encountered on this level.
Further exploration by a raise west of the main raise was without success. In the main
raise a slash was started at a point half-way up the raise on the east side at what appeared
to be the bottom of an oreshoot. The ore obtained was trucked to the Van Roi mill.
Production: Ore milled, 90 tons. Gross content: Silver, 181 oz.; lead, 1,005 1b.;
zinc, 11,149 Ib.
(49° 117° N.E.) The Fisher Maiden property consists of the
Fisher Maiden Troy and St. Helena Crown-granted claims on the north side of
Silverton Creek, 8 miles by road from Silverton. It is owned by
Frank S. Mills and S. Dewis, both of Silverton. It was last active in 1953, when the
lowest adit was rehabilitated for its full length of 1,330 feet. The main oreshoot in this
adit is near the portal, where a fissure vein in granite has been partly stoped to the adit
above. The ore thus obtained and stored many years ago in a cribbed structure at the
portal was removed in 1956 and trucked to the Van Roi mill. Production: Ore milled,
75 tons. Gross content:  Silver, 1,196 oz.; lead, 1,929 Ib.; zinc, 11,097 1b.
(49° 117° N.E.) This is a group of eight Crown-granted claims
Westmont on the north side of Enterprise Creek, opposite the Enterprise
mine. It is owned by J. A. Cullinane, of Nelson. A short access
road leads to the lowest of four adits from a point on the Enterprise Creek road about
415 miles from the Nelson-Nakusp Highway. The property has been idle since 1929,
and most of the workings are inaccessible. In 1956 a lease was given to C. Thickett
and H. Myers. The No. 4 dump, which is on the Eastmont claim, was mined and trucked
to the Van Roi mill at Silverton. Production: Ore milled, 170 tons. Gross content:
Silver, 2,453 oz.; lead, 3,986 Ib.; zinc, 5,599 Ib.
(49° 117° N.E.) The Austin group of three recorded claims is
Austin west of the Enterprise mine of Western Exploration Company
Limited and covers the abandoned Mount Royal group of Dumac
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64 REPORT OF THE MINISTER OF MINES, 1955

The mill operated throughout 1955, treating Violamac ore on a custom basis. In
addition to that mentioned, custom milling was done for the Van Roi and Jackson mines.
The number of men employed averaged thirty-four.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 532 Burrard Street, Vancou-
Van Roi, Hewitt ver; mine office, Silverton. G. W. West, mine manager. Capital:
(Slocan Yan Roi 5,000,000 shares, no par value. This company is a reorganization
Mines Limited) of Van Roi Consolidated Mines Ltd., which owned the Van Roi
and Hewitt mines near Silverton. Transcontinental Resources
Limited has directional control. The Hewitt mine, 6%4 miles by road southeast of Silver-
ton, was reopened in the latter half of 1955. It had been idle since 1952, except for some
work done by lessees in 1954. On the lowest or No. 10 level, an orebody about 2,000
feet from the portal has been stoped in the past above the level. To investigate this ore-
body at depth a drift 430 feet long was driven into the hangingwall and diamond-drilling
stations established. The drift followed a mineralized brecciated quartz shear for 200
feet. Diamond drilling was in progress at the end of 1955. Air for drilling was supplied
by a portable compressor at the portal. Other services were supplied from the Van Roi
camp. As many as ten men were employed.

A shipment of 5 tons was made by E. Merrill and H. Lyon, who leased the Hewitt
in 1954.

The Van Roi mine and camp are one-quarter mile by road east of the Hewitt No. 10
portal. Since 1953 the mine has been under lease to M. Slobodzian, J. W. Miller, and
L. Fried. These lessees continued to obtain most of their ore from an underhand stope
in the southwest end of the workings on No. 3 level. This stope was more than 100 feet

deep on a 45-degree incline. The sorted ore was shipped to the Trail smelter and the .

remainder was stored in an old ore-pass which extends from No. 5 to No. 3 levels. The
latter ore was trucked to the Western Exploration mill at Silverton whenever milling
facilities became available. A total of 1,457 tons was milled in 1955.

The Van Roi mill is 1 mile south of Silverton on the Nelson-Nakusp Highway.
Since its shut-down in 1952 the sink-float plant and the power units have been removed.
Late in 1955 power units were again installed and the flotation circuit was improved by
the addition of more cells. It is expected the mill should be able to treat custom and
company ore early in 1956.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 511, 850 West Hastinas Street,

Bosun (New Vancouver, Capital: 3,000,000 shares, 50 cents par value. The

Santiago Mines Bosun mine is on the east shore of Slocan Lake, 1¥4 miles south

Limited) of New Denver on the Nelson-Nakusp Highway. The main haul-

age, No. 6 adit, is driven beneath the highway from a site 40 feet

above the lake. At 2,730 feet from the portal an inclined winze extends to No. 7 and

No. 8 levels. The mine has been idle since 1953. In 1955 a small crew was engaged

to unwater the winze, but the project was abandoned after a few weeks. J. Zambon was
in charge of this work.

: (49° 117° N.E.) This mine is about 2 miles by road south of Sil-
Galena Far verton. For several years it has been under intermittent lease to
Frank S. Mills, of Silverton. Only surface work was done in 1955.

An interesting discovery of a lead-silver fissure was made in the vicinity of bulldozer
stripping done in 1954.

(49° 117° N.E.) The Noonday mine is just east of the Galena
Noonday Farm mine. It is owned by R. Wilson-Smith and the Bank of
Montreal. M. Arishenkoff. of Shoreacres, who leased the prop-

erty in 1954, made a 10-ton shipment to the Trail smelter in 1955.
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(49° 117° N.E.) The Van Roi mine and camp is 62 miles by
road southeast of Silverton. It is owned by Van Roi Consolidated
Mines Ltd. (company office, 532 Burrard Street, Vancouver) but
was under lease during 1954 to M. Slobodzian, J. W. Miller, and L. Fried. Most of the
production came from the southwest end of the workings on No. 3 level where an under-
hand stope was started in 1953 below the 346 stope. This stope was enlarged and an
incline track installed for handling ore and supplies. Ore was also obtained from “A”
level. Most of the ore was lowered through raises to No. 5 level, where the track had to
be reinstalled. Over 1,000 tons of ore was trucked to the Carnegie mill at Sandon for
custom milling. Twenty-five tons of sorted ore was trucked to the Trail smelter.
- (49° 117° N.E.) This mine is west of the Van Roi mine and is
Hewitt served by the same road from Silverton. It has been idle since
1952, when Van Roi Consolidated Mines Ltd. ceased operations,
but was under lease, in the latter half of 1954, to E. Merrill and H. Lyon. A remnant
of ore was mined in the 1046 stope about 40 feet above No. 10 level. This stope is about
2,300 feet from the portal, and some track had to be reinstalled to allow hand-tramming
of the ore. Air for mining was supplied by a small compressor set up near No. 10 portal.

Production: Ore shipped, 16 tons. Gross content: Silver, 1,405 oz.; lead, 7,836 Ib.;
zinc, 5,933 1b: -

Van Roi

(49° 117° N.E.) This mine is about 2 miles by road south of
Silverton. It was again under lease to Frank S. Mills, of Silverton.
Bulldozer stripping was done in an effort to locate a granite-
sediment contact near the old shaft workings. Considerable high-grade float was un-
covered in this work but the source was not located. No underground work was done
except for a short exploratory adit driven near the stripping.
(49° 117° N.E.) The Noonday workings are just east of the
Noonday Galena Farm mine. A lease was obtained by H. Lyon and E.
Merrill, of Silverton, who did some underhand mining about 200
feet from the portal of the main adit. A later lease was given to M. Arishenkoff, also of
Silverton, who made a shipment to the Trail smelter of much lower-grade material.
Production: Ore shipped, Lyon and Merrill lease, 4 tons. Gross content: Silver,
628 oz.; lead, 2,925 1b.; zinc, 1,075 Ib. Ore shipped, Arishenkoff lease, 16 tons. Gross
content: Silver, 263 oz.; lead, 925 Ib.; zinc, 858 1b.

UPPER ARROW LAKE*
Uranium-Thorium
(50° 117° S.W.) This is a group of seven located claims astride
Sta-Tite a small westerly flowing tributary of Arrowpark (Mosquito) Creek,
9 miles by road north of Arrow Park. The claims are owned by
H. S. Murphy and F. D. Jordon, of Nakusp. A narrow seam in granite on the north
bank of the tributary stream was found to activate a Geiger counter three to four times
the background count. A small amount of stripping has been done and an access jeep-
road built to the showing which is at 2,700 feet elevation. The strike of the showing
appears to be north-south. Two samples were taken at the pit of material giving the

strongest reaction. One grab sample was taken of pit material. The assay results are
as follows:—

. Width of | Uranium | Thorium
Location of Sample Sample Oxide Oxide
In. Per Cent | Per Cent
North end of pit 8 0.01 0.14
South end of pit (6 feet from above ple) 15 0.004 0.016
Grab 0.005 0.11

* By J. W, Peck.
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crosscut.  Short crosscuts were driven every 200 feet to intersect the lode. About 1,000
feet from the main crosscut the lode turned from north 75 degrees west to south 70
degrees west. The lode was mineralized west of the turn but not east of it. Diamond
drilling of the western section was in progress at the end of 1953.

Standard —This mine was operated by lessees during 1953. J. Kelly and R. Welch
mined and shipped 21 tons. W. Nelson and W. Brown obtained 4 tons from the 704
stope. Messrs. Nelson and Chmelar also mined 7 tons from the same area. C. E.
Towgood and J. Nesbitt rehabilitated the No. 2 adit and found some zincy ore in the
wall of an old stope about 100 feet inside the portal. A short access road was built to the
No. 2 portal, and an ore-bin constructed. Air-lines were extended from the Western
Exploration air-supply at the Standard camp. Several truckloads of ore were taken
to the Western Exploration mill at Silverton and stored there for possible milling in 1954.

Enterprise.—O. Meurling and E. Meyers operated a lease from May, 1953. Twenty-
seven tons of ore was mined and shipped to the Trail smelter; all but 4 tons came from
the 701 stope. : ‘

Standard Mill.—The mill at Silverton operated throughout 1953, handling Violamac
ore on a custom basis at a rate of over 2,000 tons per month. The number of men
employed by the company averaged seven underground and twenty-five on the surface.

(49° 117° N.E.) The Fisher Maiden property consists of the

Fisher Maiden Troy and St. Helena Crown-granted claims on the north side of

Silverton Creek, 8 miles by road from Silverton. It is owned

by F. S. Mills and S. Dewis, both of Silverton, but was optioned in the latter part of 1953

to Violamac Mines (B.C.) Limited. The lowest adit is 30 feet above Silverton Creek

and was reported to be 800 feet long. In 1953 it was rehabilitated, and the face was

reached at 1,330 feet from the portal. Considerable repair work was done on the last
3 miles of road. Two men were engaged in this work under F. S. Mills.

(49° 117° N. E.) The Van Roi mine and camp is 612 miles by

Van Roi road southeast of Silverton. It is owned by Van Roi Consolidated

Mines Ltd. (company office, 532 Burrard Street, Vancouver) but

was under lease in the latter half of 1953 to A. Day and M. Slobodzian. On No. 3 level,

in the southwest end of the workings, underhand mining was done below the 346 stope,

which was considered mined out in 1952. The best ore was sorted out and removed

via the No. 3 adit, while the lower-grade ore was stored in the main ore-pass to No. 5

level to await economic milling facilities. Air for mining purposes was supplied by
a portable compressor set up at the No. 3 portal.

At the mine camp all machinery, the main haulage track (No. S level), and plumb-
ing, heating, and light fixtures have been removed and sold. The buildings are intact
and in good condition.

Production: Ore shipped, 6 tons. Gross content: Silver, 256 oz.; lead, 6,765 1b.;
zinc, 1,031 1b.
: (49° 117° N.E.) This mine is about 2 miles by road south of
Galena Farm Silverton. It was under option throughout most of 1953 to Hardex
Mines Limited, of Noranda, Que. The main adit is the 150 level,
but there is an inaccessible shaft which bottoms on the 200 level. Diamond drilling
was done in the main adit at a location 165 feet past the Noonday lode, 720 feet from
the portal. One hole, 389 feet long, was put down to explore ground ahead of the
200 level. Core recovery was poor, and the hole had to be cemented. Results were
reported as negative.

Frank S. Mills and W. D. Pengelly, both of Silverton, made a small shipment under
Jease to the Trail smelter.

Production: Ore shipped, 3 tons. Gross content: Silver, 144 oz.; lead, 2,759 Ib.;
zinc, 917 b,
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(49° 117° N.E.) Frank S. Mills, of Silverton, continued to oper-

Galena Farm ate this mine under lease. During most of 1952 ore was sold to

the Western Exploration Company Limited at Silverton and a few

tons was trucked to the Trail smelter. Production was as high as 100 tons per month.
Mr. Mills was assisted by W. D. Pengelly, also of Silverton.

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, 106, 413 Granville Street,
Dumac Mines  Vancouver. G. A. McPherson, mine manager; H. D. Forman,
Limited consulting engineer. Capital: 3,000,000 shares, no par value.
This company owns the Mount Royal and Royalite groups of three
claims each, located on Enterprise Creek, to the west of the Enterprise mine of Western
Exploration Company Limited. The company was formed in 1947 to develop this prop-
erty, but work has been intermittent. A few open-cuts have been made on a strong shear
zone on the east side of Bondholder Creek, a northeasterly flowing tributary of Enterprise
Creek. There is also a short inaccessible adit. In 1952 a new adit was collared about
300 feet northeast of the open-cuts. It was driven southerly as a crosscut for 40 feet
until the projected shear was intersected and then turned southwest as a drift on the shear.
About 100 feet of drifting was done, but no ore was encountered. Another 200 feet of
drifting would extend the adit to a point below the open-cuts. All work ceased in June.
Two men were employed.

SPRINGER CREEK*
Silver

(49° 117° N.E.) Company office, P.O. Box 230, Noranda, Que.;
Ottawa (Harrison British Columbia office, 1408, 675 West Hastings Street, Vancou-

Drilling & ver; mine office, Slocan City; P. Harrison, Noranda, Que., presi-
Exploration dent. Capital: 800 shares, $50 par value. This company has
Co. Ltd.) under option the Ottawa mine, which is north of Springer Creek,

about S miles by road from Slocan City. Intermittent operations
were carried on during 1952. In the No. 6, or lowest, adit a raise was started from “B”
stope at an angle of about 25 degrees toward the underhand Cameron stope on No. 5
level, the vertical distance between the two levels being 280 feet. A 1,100-foot drive on
No. 6 level was started from the south end of the east part of the workings toward a point
on the surface near the old Morris workings. This development work was stopped in June.
About fifteen men were employed during the first half of 1952 under M. H. McLeod.

Production: Ore shipped, 69 tons. Gross content: Silver, 15,535 oz.

Silver-Lead-Zinc

(49° 117° N.E.) The Little Tim group at the head of Little Tim
Little Tim or L.T. Creek, a tributary of Springer Creek, is a relocation of the cancelled
(Bondholder) Crown-granted claims of the Bondholder group. Eight claims held
by D. B. O'Neail, of Slocan City, are under option to Harrison
Drilling & Exploration Co. Ltd. (later known as Hardex Mines Limited). The claims are
at elevations of about 6,600 feet and are reached by a steep road, completed in 1952, 2.7
miles from the Ottawa mine. Most of the workings are on the V Day and Victory V

claims, corresponding to the cancelled Graphic and Rosebud claims respectively.

Two narrow fissure veins, dipping steeply in granite, have been developed in the past
by four adits and a shaft. During 1952 the lower adit, No. 4, at 6,624 feet elevation, was
extended 360 feet to a total length of 440 feet. Near the face a raise was put up to break
through near the face of No. 3 adit, 75 feet vertically above. On No. 4 level the vein was
only a few inches wide but contained high silver values. Two small stopes were started
on this level. A new adit, No. 5, was started at 6,519 feet elevation, 400 feet southwest
of No. 4 portal. This adit was 20 feet long when the property was visited at the end of

* By J. W. Peck.
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The mill was in operation at the end of September, and the sink-float plant started
in December. Most of the ore milled in 1951 came from a stockpile of 7,000 tons
accumulated over the past year from stoping operations at the Hewitt and development
work at the Van Roi. To improve truck-haulage, the road was partly relocated and
a connection made with the mill-site. The total crew employed had increased to ninety-
five by the end of 1951.

This property was under option until December to Van Roi Con-
Galena Farm solidated Mines Ltd. This company carried out a geophysical
survey followed up by bulldozer stripping, but no lode was dis-
covered. Frank S. Mills, of Silverton, operated his lease during January and February
and again in November and December. Ore obtained was sold to the Western Explora-
tion Company at Silverton. ’
Production: Ore milled, 418 tons. Gross content: Silver, 625 oz.; lead, 15,039
Ib.: zinc, 36,254 Ib. :

, This property lies astride the Nelson-Nakusp Highway about
White Hope 5 miles north of Slocan City. It is owned by Spokane Slocan
Company. As in 1950, leasing operations were carried out by

J. 1. McDonell, of Slocan City.

SPRINGER CREEK (49° 117° N.E.)*

Company office, P.O. Box 230, Noranda, Que.; British Columbia
Ottawa (Harrison oftice, 1408, 675 West Hastings Street, Vancouver; mine office,
Drilling & Explora- Slocan City. Capital: 800 shares, $50 par value. This company
tion Company Ltd.) has operating control of the Ottawa mine under an agreement with
Violamac Mines (B.C.) Limited, which optioned the property from
the Ottawa Silver Mining & Milling Company. The mine is north of Springer Creek,
about 5 miles by road from Slocan City. Work was concentrated in the No. 6, or
lowest, adit, in which leasing operations had been carried out previously. Compressed
air was installed, and stoping commenced on a vein intersected by the adit crosscut 1,600
zet from the portal. This vein has a dip of 25 degrees and, where mined, is 5 feet wide.
The vein matter is principally quartz with a few inches of high-grade silver-bearing
minerals on the hangingwall. Cut-and-fill mining methods were employed, and careful
sorting was required. To improve ventilation and provide a second exit, a raise was
started on the vein to No. 5 level. Ore obtained was trucked to Slocan City for tranship-
ment by rail to the Trail smelter. The mine was idle during the summer and fall, but
mining and development work commenced again in December on No. 6 level. In the
carly part of the year fifteen men were employed under W. E. Leonard.
This property is at the head of Little Tim Creek, a southerly flowing
Little Tim  tributary of Springer Creek. It is owned by D. B. O’Neail, of
(L.T.) Slocan, but was optioned in 1951 to Harrison Drilling & Explora-
tion Co. Ltd. In the fall a 2-mile road was constructed to the

property from the Ottawa mine. Four men were working underground by the end of
1951,

Silver

This property, 3 miles by road north of Slocan City, is owned by
Repubhc No.2 C. B. Tipping, of Slocan City. In 1951 an option was granted to
Harrison Drilling & Exploration Co. Ltd. A diamond-drilling
programme was commenced late in the year.

This claim, owned by W. E. Parker, of New Westminster, was
Speculator optioned in 1951 by Ottawa Silver Mining & Milling Company.
It is north of the Arlington mine, about 7 miles by road from

S\m.an City. One small shipment was made from a dump near the road.

B) J. W. Peck.
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menced mining in a stope on the lowest or No. 10 level, approximately 2,400 feet in from
the portal. From the No. 3 dump, west side, 807 tons was removed and trucked to the
Whitewater mill at Retallack for a sink-float test.

Machinery for mining consisted of a Schramm UD-18 International diesel 315-cubic-
feet-per-minute compressor set up at No. 10 portal of the Hewitt, and an Ingersoll-Rand
G.M. diesel 365-cub1c-feet—per—mmutc compressor set up at No. 3 portal of the Van Roi.
Twelve men were employed in December.

Production: Ore milled, 1,466 tons; ore shipped, 5.7 tons. Gross content of ore
and concentrates: Gold, 23 oz.; silver, 9,490 oz.; lead, 75,699 1b.; zinc, 103,464 1b.

Frank S."Mills, of Silverton, continued to operate his lease on this

Galena Farm old property 12 miles by road south of Silverton. Up to June
one man was employed, but after that date a partnership of three

men was formed. The bulk of the ore mined came from the lower adit level in the
extreme west end of the Main lode. Some ore was also mined from the surface where
the vein outcrops near the old compressor building. Ore obtained was crushed in a small
jaw-crusher and then trucked to the Western Exploration Company’s mill at Silverton.
In November, Transcontinental Resources Limited obtained an option on the property,
but Mr. Mills and his partners continued to work under lease. One shipment of 8 tons
was trucked to Trail. Gross content: Silver, 516 oz.; lead, 7,472 1b.; zinc, 1,767 1b.
_Production: Ore milled, for Mills, 180 tons; for Mills, Pengelly, and Cooper, 825
tons; total, 1,005 tons. Content: Silver, 2,960 oz.; lead, 15,332 Ib.; zinc, 190,398 Ib.

This Crown-granted claim, about 2 miles by road from Silverton,
Noonday adjoins the Galena Farm mine to the east. It was subleased from
A. Erickson by G. W. Lyon, A. Lyon, and H. Cleaver, who worked
from August until November. A short road was built to the portal of the upper level,
and about 50 tons of backfill was drawn from an old stope near the portal. A section of
the adit, extending 30 feet from the portal, caved through to surface, and further opera-
tions were suspended for the winter. The 50 tons was stored in a bin and was not
shipped in 1950. . ‘ '
. This property is alongside the Silverton—-Hewitt road, about
Metallic 2 miles from Silverton. It was inactive most of the year but was
under lease in the early part to J. Tarnowski, G. Tarnowski, and
J. Heichert. These partners started two raises on the lower level approximately 45 feet
each way from the main raise that connects with the upper level. From the raise nearest
the portal, 70%4 tons of ore was obtained, 65 tons being trucked to the Western Explora-
tion mill at Silverton and 14 tons to the Trail smelter. The other raise was carried up
67 feet, but no ore was found.
Late in 1950 Van Roi Consolidated Mines 1td. obtained an option on the property,
but no further work was done.
Production: Lead ore shipped to Trail, 14 tons. Gross content: Silver, 719 oz.;
lead, 2,993 1b.; zinc, 3,792 1b.

The A.U. mine of five claims and fractions, owned by John O.

A.U. (Lucky Nesbitt and James J. McNow, of Silverton, covers ground formerly
Thought) owned by The Consolidated Mining and Smelting Company and
known at that time as the Lucky Thought group. The mine is on

Silverton Creek, 4 miles by road from Silverton. It has not been worked since 1937.

. Shipments of surface material were made in November and December to the Trail smelter.

Production: Ore shipped, 26 tons. Gross content: Silver, 794 oz.; lead, 4,347 Ib.;
zinc, 13,458 1b.
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drive encountered a short section of ore near the winze that was underhand-stoped on
No. 7 level about two years before. During the summer the property was turned over
to lessees, but late in the year the company again resumed operations with the intention
of deepening the winze.

On the surface a new office building was erected, but mill construction, begun in
1948, was stopped after the foundation was poured. A small jig plant was used to sort
the ore before it was trucked to the smelter at Trail. About 600 tons was also trucked
to the Whitewater mill.

Production: Ore shipped, 1,208 tons. Gross contents: Gold, 10 oz.; silver, 40,792

z.; lead, 416,246 1b.; zinc, 124,241 1b.

E. C. Wragge, of Nelson, owns six claims at Silverton, just below and

Buck Fraction. west of the Standard mine of the Western Exploration Company,

Limited. The claims are the Crescent, the Buck Fraction, Silverton

Boy, Mohawk, Binks Fraction, and the Tram Fraction. All are Crown-granted, except

the Tram Fraction and Binks Fraction. It is reported that when the road to the 7c

adit of the Standard mine was put across the Buck Fraction in 1937, a lead-zinc outcrop

was exposed. In February, 1949, Messrs. Norquist and Nesbitt obtained a lease on this

property and did bulldozing stripping in this area. A lead containing galena and

sphalerite was exposed, but as it dipped into the hillside with the flat argllhte bedding,
further stripping was difficult and the project was abandoned.

Company office, 1720 Marine Building, Vancouver; mine office, Silver-
Van Roi Mines ton. K. G. Nairn, president; N. ¥. Brookes, managing director.
(1947), Ltd.  Capital: 2,000,000 shares, no par value. This company owns the Van
Roi mine near Silverton. The oreshoot, developed in the southeast

section of the mine by drifting in 1948, was mined.

It is reported that Van Roi ore amounting to 5,114 tons was milled, 521 tons at the
Western Exploration Company mill and 4,593 tons at the Kenville Gold Mines mill, and
that 1,340 tons remained stockpiled at the latter mill. Shipments to the smelter
included 210 tons of lead concentrates, 29 tons of lead ore, and 295 tons of zine con-
centrates.

Development: Drifting, 227 feet; crosscutting, 99 feet; diamond drilling, 852 feet.

Production: Gross contents of concentrates and ore shipped to smelter—Gold, 153
oz.; silver, 88,227 oz.; lead, 263,916 1b.; zinc, 367,847 1b.; cadmium, 2,742 1b.

This old property is about 114 miles south of Silverton. F. Mills con-

Galena Farm. tinued to operate it under lease until May. Working with a crew of

seven men, he mined ore from remnants in the Noonday Lode from a

sublevel 60 feet above the main adit level. Ore obtained was crushed in a small jaw-

crusher and then trucked to the Western Exploration Company’s mill at Silverton.
After May Mr. Mills continued exploration and made one shipment in October.

Production: Ore shipped, 1,881 tons. Gross contents: Silver, 23,090 oz.; lead,

90,114 1b.; zinc, 248,872 Ib.

This property is alongside the Silverton—-Hewitt Road, about 2 miles

Metallic. south of Silverton. W. Crowe and A. K. Lotz hold an option from the

owners, A. S. MacAulay, L. S. MacAulay, and R. S. White. During the

first part of 1949 the property was operated under lease to four men—R. Hambly, A.

Orr, E. Quail, and L. Porter. The main development done to date consists of two adits

90 feet apart. The partners worked chiefly in the lower adit, using a portable com-

pressor, and connected the two levels. Ore obtained was trucked to Trail. The lease
expired in October.

Later in the year the property was again under lease, this time to J. Tarnowski, G.
Tarnowski, and J. Heichert. Shipments amounting to 19 tons were made to Trail, this
ore being obtained from both levels.
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In the west section of the mine, diamond-drilling was done on the No. 4 level. In
December drifting was started on the No. 3 level to explore possible upward extension
of these drill results. It is the management’s intention to also extend this drift beyond
the Van Roi fault to establish a drill station for exploratory drilling. The Humbolt
claim, which adjoins the Van Roi holdings to the west and the Hewitt mine to the east,
was obtained, as it lies to the west of the Van Roi fault.
Development: Drifting, 310 feet; crosscutting, 137 feet; open-cuts, 43 feet;
diamond-drilling, 2,010 feet. The number of men employed averaged seven.
Production: Ore shipped to Whitewater mill, 711 tons. Gross return of con-
centrates shipped to Trail: Gold, 2.5 oz.; silver, 6,476 oz.; lead, 81,090 lb.; zinc,
78,660 1b.; cadmium, 616 lb.
This property continued to be operated under lease by F. Mills, of
Galena Farm. Silverton. With two partners he completed the mining of the surface
ore-remnant he was mining last year. New ore possibilities were then
found in the Main Lode off the main crosscut level. With the crew increased to five,
the bulk of the 1948 tonnage came from this area. In December the Noonday Lode
was reopened and good ore-remnants were discovered in a sub-level about 60 feet above
the main level. Work was concentrated here at the end of the year. Ore obtained was
crushed in a small jaw-crusher and then trucked to the Western Exploration Company’s
mill at Silverton, but 23 tons of high-grade ore was trucked directly to the smelter at
Trail. Ore shipped, 815 tons. Gross contents: silver, 6,792 oz.; lead, 52,245 1b.;
zine, 151,964 1b.
[Reference: Geol. Surv., Canada, Mem. 184, p. 43.]

This property is situated alongside the Silverton-Hewitt Road about 2
Metallic. miles south of Silverton. It is owned by A. S. MacAulay, L. S.
MacAulay, and R. S. White and was optioned to W. Crowe and A. K.
Lotz, who optioned the property to F. L. Kersey, of Spokane.
Mr. Kersey started a raise between the two levels on the property about 350 feet
in from the portal of the lower level. This raise was on the shear, but apparently did
not expose any ore. Mr. Kersey then ceased work, and the property remained idle
until fall, when Messrs. Crowe and Lotz made a small shipment.
Production: Ore shipped, 6% tons. Gross contents: Silver, 559 oz.; lead, 2,244
lb.; zinc, 1,441 lb.
Buster.—This group lies below the Metallic and consists of the Buster No. 1, Buster
No. 2, and Buster No. 3. It is owned by R. J. White, of Nelson. Some stripping was
done by bulldozer.

Company office, 744 Hastings Street West, Vancouver., At the property

Dumac Mines, of this company, situated down-stream from the Enterprise mine on

Ltd. Enterprise Creek, the proposed development-work outlined in the 1947

Minister of Mines Report was not done. Operations were suspended

early in 1948 after a little additional surface-trenching was completed. A trial ship-

ment of 6.27 tons shipped to Trail yielded: Gold, 0.16 oz.; silver, 208 oz.; lead, 652 1b.;
zine, 1,454 1b.

Head office, 1946 Gregory Way, Bremerton, Wash.; British Columbia
Mabou, Ohio, office, 507 Baker Street, Nelson. R. D. Austin, president. Very little
and Svanhild  \ork was done in 1948 on the Mabou, Ohio, and Svanhild claims,

J;:;?;Lezmig::f'_ situated on the southern side of Enterprise Creek valley. In December,

ing Corporation), however, some surface diamond-drilling was begun on the Svanhild

claim under the direction of W. S. Hamilton. A trial shipment of
4.21 tons to the smelter at Trail from the Svanhild contained: Silver, 10.53 oz.;
zinc, 76 1b.
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Whenever possible, sorting to shipping grade was done in the stopes. The plant was ¥ ﬂ
operated for 151 shifts; it permitted a more flexible operation, and recovery was i
greater than had been anticipated. _ e

The average number of men employed was fifteen. )
Shipments made to the Trail smelter, mostly in the latter half of 1947, amounted
to 291 tons. Net contents: Silver, 26,820 oz.; lead, 178,800 lb.; zine, 100,017 1b.. !

Company office, Vancouver. K. G. Nairn, president; N. Nairn, o '

Van Roi Mines secretary-treasurer; N. F. Brookes, mine manager. Capital: 2,000,000 q

(1947),Ltd.  ghares, no par value. This is a new British Columbia company formed

to acquire the Van Roi mine from Van Roi Base Metals, Limited, which

retains a share interest in the new company. Camp was established about October 1st,

: and work was started immediately to widen the upper part of the road and build a

| crossing across Vancouver (Prior) Creek to connect with the Hewitt road. This work
' on the crossing was suspended when winter weather set in.

A portable Schramm compressor was set up ‘at the mine, and No. 3 level east was
rehabilitated for several hundred feet. At 420 feet from the portal a crosscut was
driven toward the south vein, where it was known to contain good ore. By the end of
the year the crosscut had been advanced 50 feet of the estimated 75 feet. It is the
intention to mine and transfer the ore from this vein to the No. 5 level by existing
raises, thence via the east portal to a loading-bin. Mining will not commence, how-
ever, until the road can be put into proper condition in the sprmg In the meantime a9
it is proposed to do exploratory diamond-drilling. : sl o r R

Production, from cleaning up the old mill: Ore shipped, 9 tons. Net contents: i R
Silver, 372 oz.; lead, 5,092 lb.; zinc, 2,190 1b. i

A small crew of men under the supervision of Fred H. Crosby and,
Hewitt, later, Earl Snyder, for the Granby Consolidated Mining, Smelting, and
Power Company, Limited, completed essential timbering of an old
stope 2,300 feet from the portal of No. 10 level and began to drive a ventilation raise
through to No. 9 level. Later, some ore was slashed from the walls of No. 10 drift and oA 18
shipped, and a start was made to stope above the drift. It was soon evident that 18 1g i
4 the heavy ground would make this a costly operation on the scale planned, and this, ‘ :
2 coupled with the lack of assurance that the shoot was continuous to No. 9 level, caused
» the management to discontinue work and drop the option.
E 3 Before closing the mine, the road to the property was put in condition for heavy
' traffic. The road will -be used for hauling ore from the Van Roi when a crossing is
completed over Vancouver (Prior) Creek to connect with the Van Roi road.
] . Production: Ore mined, 292 tons. Net contents: Gold, 3 oz.; silver, 5,408 oz.;
| lead, 14,948 Ib.; zinc, 42,948 Ib.

~ This property was leased by Frank Mills, of Silverton, who mined and
/Ba{ena Farm./ shipped some 50 tons of zinc ore from a near-surface stope-remnant, ;
close to the power-house. This ore was milled by the Western Explora- : :
i pany at Silverton. Production also included selected lead ore shipped directly
to the Trail smelter, amounting to 3 tons. Net contents: Silver, 144 oz.; lead, 940 1b.;
zine, 695 lb. .

Western Exploration Co.—Company office, Silverton. A. M. Ham, general manager;
R. A. Avison, mine superintendent. Capital: 2,000,000 shares, 50 cents par value.
A This company owns the Mammoth and Standard mines near Silverton and the Enter-
x prise mine on Enterprise Creek, about 12 miles to the south.

Standard.—With the exception of repair-work on No. 7 level, the Standard mine
remained closed until the beginning of October. A total of 2,030 feet was reclaimed
on this level. Development since October included 67 feet of drifting on the 640 level
and 22 feet of advance in No. 506 raise. Stoping was resumed on the No. 5 and No. 6
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AINSWORTH CAMP.

Banker.—Situated near Ainsworth; owned by H. Giegerich, of Kaslo, and operated by
the Ainsworth Mines, Limited (head office, 101 Adelaide Street West, Toronto), with Carl M.
Mohr as manager. The number of men employed varied between 'nineteen (ten underground)
in March, and fifty-two (thirty-two underground) in September. Later this was again re-
duced to twenty-three (fourteen underground). The chief development-work done consisted
in drifting from the shaft and extending the adit-crosscut driven when the Consolidated Min-
ing and Smelting Company was operating the property. The total tonnage mined (including
161 tons shipped in the name of the owner) amounted to 3,305 tons, with metal contents
amounting to 27,464 oz. silver and 1,557,552 1b. lead.

Spokane-Trinket.—Adjoining the Banker and held by the Maestro Silver Lead Mines,
Limited, with Carl M. Mohr as manager. No work was done on this property in the course
of the year, beyond erecting a compressor-house, an ore bin, and a blacksmith-shop.

Jewel.—Some work of an exploratory nature was done on this property by the Ainsworth
Mines, Limited, under the direction of Carl M. Mohr, this consisting chiefly in the sinking of
a small winze. Three men were employed for some time. Twenty-six and a half tons of ore
shipped from the mine yielded 196 oz. silver and 14,358 1b. lead.

Lady of the Lake.~S. Romer and A. Prestmo shipped 8 tons of ore from this property,
yielding 118 oz. silver and 1,580 1lb. lead.

Crow Fledgling.—The owner, W. E. Lane, shipped 7 tons of ore from this property, which
yielded a total of 35 oz. silver and 835 1b. lead.

Crescent and Eden.—Robert Sherraden, holding a lease on this mine, shipped 22 tons of
ore, which yielded 205 oz. silver and 17,368 1b. lead.

New Jerusalem.—This property, owned by Mrs. Elizabeth Bishop, of Los Angeles, Cali-
fornia, was operated under lease by R. Hughes and A. A. Vassar, of Ainsworth. Three men
were employed. The chief development-work done consisted in the driving of a raise con-
necting the adit-level with the foot of a small shaft sunk higher on the hill-side.

KASLO-RETALLACK AREA.

Lucky Boy.—The Wayside Gold Mines, Limited, employed four men for some time on this
property under the direction of B. N. Sharp, and 50 feet of drifting was done.

Fureka.~—Nine tons of ore shipped from this property by lessees yielded 601 oz. silver and
10,332 1b. lead.

Caledorie.—Three tons of ore shxpped from this property by George McCready, of Retal-
lack, yielded 1 oz. of gold, 1,217 oz. silver, and 9,047 1b. lead.

Fourth of July.—Lessees working on this claim shipped 3 tons of ore w1th total metal
contents amounting to 136 oz. silver and 1,376 1b. lead.

SANDON-THREE FORKS AREA.

Slocan Monitor.—This property, owned by the Slocan Monitor Silver Mines, Limited, is
situated near Three Forks. Manager, Arthur Lakes. Operations were carried on succes-
sively by two different groups of lessees in the course of the year, the company, however,
having some exploratory-work done at the same time, in the form of diamond-drilling and
surface-stripping. A total of 71 tons shipped by the lessees yielded 6 oz. gold, 2,927 oz. silver,
50,840 1b. lead, and 15,059 1b. zinc. The development and exploratory work done consisted of
100 feet of raising, 28 feet of drifting, 822 feet of diamond-drilling, and 160 feet of cross-
cutting.
Black Colt and Palmita—Owned by the Cunningham Mines, Limited. Clarence Cun-
ningham, of Alamo, employed a small crew on these properties, and shipped 39 tons of ore
which yielded 2,831 oz. silver and 31,054 1b. lead.

~ Queen Bess—A group of four lessees, headed by E. Betalli, of New Denver, shipped 38
tons of ore from this property yielding 1 oz. gold, 3,880 oz. silver, 48,781 Ib. lead, and 2,729

Ib. zinc. SLOCAN LAKE AREA.

Galena Farm.—This property, owned by the Galena Farm Mines, Limited, and situated
4 short distance south of Silverton, was under lease to a group of residents of that locality,
headed by Warren Nelson, until late in the year, when operations were discontinued. Eight
men were employed while the lease was in effect. A total of 234 tons shipped yielded 1 oz.
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The workings are in difficult ground. Weak walls, with a large body of irregular structure
and containing occasionally a considerable percentage of waste, are factors combining to render
the utmost skill and care necessary in the planning and conduct of mining operations.

A crew of about ninety (fifty underground) was employed in normal circumstances.
When the mine was closed down this number had been temporarily reduced to sixty-four.
The development-work done totalled 300 feet; this comprising 50 feet of drifting and 250 feet
of raising. The tonnage mined was 9,080 and 9,485 tons were milled, yielding 95,087 oz.
silver, 615,600 1b. lead, and 776,561 1b. zinec.

Standard.—Owned by the Western Exploration Company, Limited. Lessees working on
this property during the greater part of the year shipped 48 tons of ore, yielding 1 oz. gold,
1,651 oz. silver, 14,606 b, lead, and 17,493 1b. zinc.

Bosun.—Situated on Slocan Lake, between New Denver and Silverton. Owned by C. J.

" Campbell and operated by Jos. Beber and Jos. Zamboni, holding separate leases, with a total

of five men. On November 8th a crew of five, sent to the property by the newly-organized
Bosun Mining Company (with headquarters at Vancouver), began the work of unwatering the
winze, which continued until the end of December, when the compressed-air pipe-line was
taken up and the place was abandoned again. During the year the lessees shipped 177 tons
of ore with metal contents of 3 oz. gold, 12,740 oz. silver, 57,197 1b lead, and 92,690 1b. zinc.

Hewitt.—Owned by the Galena Farm Consolidated Mines, Limited, and situated 6 miles by
road from Silverton. Three groups of lessees, with a total of ten men and headed by Ed.
Mathews, R. E. Burke, and E. Erickson, respectively, worked on the property during the
second half of the year, undertaking a considerable amount of repair-work in order to reach
the point at which they intended to start operations. The mire had been abandoned since
the beginning of 1930 and many parts of it are in very poor condition, the timber having
suffered from the inroads of dry-rot to an extraordinary extent. The development-work dene
was limited to 16 feet of sinking. Sixty-seven tons of ore mined and shlpped yieldod 7,670 oz.
silver and 18,193 1b. lead.

Galena Furm.—Situated on Hasty Creek, south of Silverton, and operated by a group of
eight lessees, headed by Warren Nelson, who started work at the mine at the beginning of
July. Here, also, a large amount of repair-work had to be undertaken before active mining
operations could begin. It has been found inadvisable, up to the present time, to attempt to
operate the mill, owing to the poor condition of the flume. The tonnage mined and shipped
was 202; this yielding 13,778 oz. silver and 121,368 1b. lead.

Clif —J. H. Dalzell, of Silverton, shipped 5 tons of ore from this property, the metal
contents being 273 oz. silver, 1,314 1b. lead, and 1,794 Ib. zinc. ‘

Molly Hughes.—Situated on Slocan Lake, north of New Denver. The Molly Hughes
Mining Company kept a crew of three at work on this property during the greater part of
the year under the direction of O. C. Born. Four tons of ore shipped to the Trail smelter
yielded 1 oz. gold, 455 oz. silver, 239 1b. lead, and 214 1b. zinc.

Mountain Chief.——This property, situated about 2 miles from New Denver and owned by
H. Giegerich, of Kaslo, was operated throughout the year by John Cechelero and associates.
The tonnage mined amounted to 40, but this was not shipped.

Jo-Jo.—Situated on Kane Creek. The trail from the lower terminal of the aerial tramway
at the McAllister to this property was rebuilt, widened,-and relocated in part, a bulldozer being
brought in for this purpose, the living-quarters were repaired, and some development-work was
done, in the course of the late summer, by the owner, John Teir, of New Denver.

Slocan Monitor.—Owned by the Slocan Monitor Silver Mines, Limited, and situat>d
at Three Forks. C. I. Vandergrift and associates began work on the property in December,
the total working force consisting of three men. The development-work done consisted of
30 feet of drifting. Seven tons of ore shipped yielded 1 oz. gold, 363 oz. silver, and 6,474 1b.
lead.

THREE FORKS-SANDON AREA.

Victor—Near Three Forks, owned by Mrs. Dacy Petty, of Nelson, and operated on lease
by Ernest Doney & Son. During the vear, 310 feet of drifting and 25 feet of raising were

done. Tw enty-nine tons of ore shipped yielded 2 oz. gold, 4,809 oz. silver, 34,988 1b. lead, and
4,111 1b. zine.
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) A small amount of underground work was done at this property, situit

Mary Ryan.* . McGuigan basin, early in 1930 by the Mary Ryan Mines, Limited, under:
direction of R. Wolthausen. A geological survey of the property was

during the summer by E. C. Annes, of Vancouver.
This property, which was well described by the late W. F. Robertson in.t

Mountain Con.* 1904 Annual Report, has witnessed further prospecting-work during the pe
season. The claims are situated 9 miles south-east of Sandon, near the hes

waters of Carpenter creek, and are easily reached by a very good trail from Cody.
The upper portion of the vein, a fissure of quartz which strikes N, 50° E. and dips to.i
north-west at 78° in the granite country-rock of this vicinity, has yielded a small tonnag
very rich silver ore in the earlier days of the Slocan camp. This year one of the orig
locators, C. A. McLeod, of Edmonton, Alberta, determined to give the property another-tria
and accordingly engaged a crew of two or three men and with the necessary supplies st
work on the No. 4 level of the property. <
This level, which starts approximately 300 feet below and 650 feet to the south-euh
where ore occurred on the No. 3 level, was advanced a distance of 100 feet along the stri
the vein (here N. 45° to 50° E.). At a point 175 feet from the face of the No. 4 level a: 3
was driven along the vein for 105 feet, with disappointing results. From a study of a sma
map made of the property it would appear that, should the past ore-lens found on No. 3 le
continue to rake to the north-east at 45° as shown by a sketch-map of the upper workings ma
by the late W. F. Robertson, the present face of the tunnel is about 500 feet from its objecti
As the upper workings, which were stated to be caved, were not examined, information as to-the
ore occurrence here is not available. It would seem that this season’s work was unde
as a prospecting venture, looking for possible high-grade ore-shoots which might occur en eacha
along the vein, but which unfortunately were not discovered.
Other minor activities which occurred during 1930 in the area contingent to Sand
included the following: The driving by George Gormley and sons of a short prospecting-tunne
at a low level on the Western claim, situated near Three Forks; small leasing operations at th
Helenita (Rio) property in Jackson basin by S. Marzoli and associates, of Sandon; continned
mining operations on a small scale at the Victor property by the late George Petty, of Sando
and Three Forks; surface prospecting by George Clark on claims above the Leadsmith propertys
situated near the head of Cody creek.

SILVERTON AREA.

The property of the Galena Farm Consolidated Mines, Limited, is situated‘

Galena Fann." 114 miles south of Silverton and extends east from Slocan lake to the Van Rof:
property, a distance of approximately 3 miles along a strong shear-zone at 3

close to the contact of the Slocan sediments and the Nelson granite batholith.
During the early portion of 1930, following the completion of the extensive programme of.
mill and tram construction outlined in the 1929 Annual Report, the mill was operated on.:
development ore from the mine and also on material obtained from a dump of the former mill"
jig tailings, the resultant lead-zine bulk concentrate being shipped to Trail smelter. Low met
prices forced a shut-down of company operations, but a group of eight experienced Slocan.
miners and millmen obtained a development lease on the Galena Farm unit of the company’s
holdings and operated for about two months’ time before closing out their lease, which gradually -
lost any attractiveness it may have had as the metal prices dropped lower and lower. 3
Following the close-down by the leasers in the summer, the property has been idle and future -
plans of the company have not been indicated.. During the summer and fall some of the extra
milling equipment owned by the company was used in the equipment of a concentrator for the &

True Fissure mine near Ferguson, and this provided work for a few of the company’s men from %

Silverton.
This property, comprising fourteen claims adjacent to and east of the Herwiit,
Van Roi.* is situated 4 miles east of Silverton, on the south side of Silverton (4-Mile)
creek. The exploration-work undertaken by the Van Roi Mines, Limited,
and energetically carried on in the fall and winter of 1929, was halted temporarily in January,
1930, on account of a fire which destroyed the cook-house and * dry ™ buildings. Necessary
repairs were made and a small crew of men kept at work around the mine until June 15th,
when financial difficulties forced a shut-down on the development-work,
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dips at 40° to the south-east and has been traced along the surface for several hundred feet to
a point pear the summit of the ridge, where a shearing movement apparently has faulted the
ground and destroyed the continuity of the vein. In past years a limited amount of leasing has
been done at the property and early in 1929 two men were working around the camp. It has
been reported recently that the new company has had a small crew of men doing exploration-
work at the 6,880-foot level of the property throughout the fall and winter months.
The late W. E. Zwicky, of Kaslo, employed a crew of four men throughout the P
Native - summer months of 1929 in further exploration-work at his Silver Bell property, P
Silver Bell.* situated in McGuigan basin at an altitude of 7,100 feet. The men, who were X
working on contract, drove a crosscut tunnel into the hill to strike the down-
ward projection of the Silver Bell vein at a point 100 feet below the depth attained by the s
‘No. 1 level at 7,250 feet elevation. The results of the summer’s work have not been officially 4
disclosed, and as the property was visited before the crosscut had advanced far enough to
strike the vein it will be necessary to visit the property during the coming summer. 7The crew,
who were working, have been withdrawn on account of the treacherous nature of the country in
winter months due to snowslides. :
This property is situated on the east side of Kane creek 3% miles north- E
MecAllister.*  east of Three Forks, the nearest railway-station on the Kaslo~-Nakusp Rail- 4
way, and is connected to it by a fair road. The mine camp, at 5,700 feet
elevation, is connected to the end of the road at the lower tram terminal by a 4-foot trail and
a 2-bucket reversible aerial tramway 4,000 feet long. The mine is owned by the Sloecan Silver
Mines, Limited, the controlling interest being held by the Standard Silver-Lead Mining Company, |
- of Silverton, of which W. H. North is manager. k. i
The property has been described in previous Annual Reports, so that only a few notes as to
development and mining activity for the past year will be given here, The fissure-vein, striking
N. 50° to 60° E. and dipping to the south-east at 45°, occurs in quartzites that are underlain
by soft beds of slate. Toward the north-east end of the underground workings the vein passes
from the quartzites into the slates and changes from a well-defined quartz-filled fissure to a
number of small scattered quartz veinlets. The mineralization is with tetrahedrite carrying
silver values, and average values in the past mining opemtmns are stated to have been 30 to
40 oz. in silver to the ton.

The mine has been developed by six levels, all of which are adit-levels with the exception
of the fourth and fifth. During 1929 a crew of twenty-five men was employed on further
exploratory work on the downward continuation of the vein between the No. 5 and No. 6 levels,
and to mining and shipping to the smelter at Trail 5,511 tons of silver ore that is reported to
have averaged between 25 and 30 oz. in silver to the ton. The stoping operations were confined k.
to ground between the No. 3 and No. 5 levels and consisted in mining pillars and level sills,
with some small blocks of ground stated to contain quite high silver values over comparatively
narrow widths. The average width of the vein above the No. 5 level is 4 to 5 feet, but below :
this level the vein where encountered on a short raise from the No. 6 level is from 1 to 2 feet in ,
width and contains very low silver values. The development was being confined to the driving
of a drift north-east from a 76-foot raise up from No. 6 level and at the time of examination g
toward the latter part of September the drift had advanced 60 feet along the vein and had
approximately 400 feet to go before reaching favourable ground on the downward projection
of the stopes from No. 5 level. The values in this development-drift were considered too small
to be of economic importance, though quite satisfactory in that they indicated similar conditions
to what bhad existed on the No. 5 level. .

The mining operations were curtailed toward the ‘end of the year due to the falling price ’4
of silver, and the prospects are that the property will remain inactive until silver prices improve. .

Among the minor operations that have been reported during the year are the following: E
The Jo-Jo near the McAllister has been developed in a small way by the owners; assessment-
work of an exploratory nature was done at the Miner Boy.
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SILVERTON.

This property, comprising the Galena Farm, Hewitt, Hazard, Noonday, and ‘, %

Calena Farm.* Lakeshore groups, containing approximately thirty-five claims, is situated '
114 miles south of Silverton and extends east from Slocan lake to the Van Roi
propérty, a distance of 3 miles along a strong shear-zone close to the contact of the sediments




3 gL

e sa——.

YL e

EASTERN DISTRICT (No. 5). C 313

of the Slocan series and the rocks of the Nelson granite batholith. In March, 1929, the above
properties were amalgamated to form the Galena Farm Consolidated Mines, Limited, with H. H,

Yuill as managing director and W, L. Sheeler as resident manager. The capitalization of the .

new company is 2,500,000 shares of no par value, of which 1,650,000 shares have been issued,
including the issue of 600,000 shares underwritten by Vancouver brokers and placed on the
market at $2 a share.

The history of the various units of this company has been described in past Annual Reports,
the years 1904, 1915, and 1928 dealing more particularly with the Galena Farm and Hewilt units,
which are the most important in the company groups. The development progress for 1929 will
constitute the bulk of this report.

At the Galena Farm a strong quartz-granite filled fissure-vein, striking 8. 60° to 70° E. and
dipping to the north at 45°, was in past years developed along a length of 1,100 feet and to a
depth of 150 feet by a series of drifts and staggered raises and connected to the mill by an
830-foot crosscut. Above this level, known as the 130-foot level, mining operations have depleted
about 850 feet of the developed length of the vein. This year extensive exploration-work has
been done in an endeavour to find the downward continuation of the vein below the 150-foot
level horizontal fault that heretofore has caused this level to be the lowest in the mine.
A winze was sunk on what is called the Noonday vein, and which may be the continuation of
the faulted Galena Farm vein, to a depth of 75 feet below the 150-foot level. Short drifts from
the bottom of the winze have been driven along a quartz-filled fissure containing considerable
amounts of mineralization in galena and silver values. The winze shows a width of 4 feet of
fair milling-ore to a depth of 50 feet below the 150-foot level. The Noonday drift on the 150-foot
level was advanced for several hundred feet to a point under the vein on the 100-foot level and
a raise to the 100-foot level intersected the main horizontal fault some 235 feet above the drift.
Above the fault to the 100-foot level the raise is in excellent milling-ore for a distance of 35 feet.

When the property was visited in November a drift was being driven east from this ra